M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 09, 2004
9: 03 AM

TAPES

SFC-04 # 34, Side A
SFC 04 # 34, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the neeting at approxinmately 9:03 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Al so Attending: JACQUELINE TUPQU, Staff to Senator Lyda G een;
FRANK HOMAN, Conm ssioner, Commrercial Fisheries Entry Conmm ssion,
Department of Fish and Gane; SUE ASPELUND, Federal Managenent
Research Coordinator, Ofice of the Conm ssioner, Departnent of
Fish and Gane; MARY MCDOWNELL, Conm ssioner, Comrercial Fisheries
Entry Conm ssion, Departnent of Fish and Gane; SUE STANCLI FF, Staff
to Representative Pete Kott; LANDA BAILY, Special Assistant, Ofice
of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue

Attending via Tel econference: From Homer: ED DERSHAM Chai r nman,
Al aska Board of Fisheries; FromOfnet Sites: BRUCE SCHACTLER, JOHN
NORRI'S, President, U Haul Conpany of Alaska; MCHAEL BELL,
Representative, Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 288- EMERGENCY CHI LD CUSTODY PLACEMENT

The Commttee heard from the sponsor and the bill reported from
Conmittee.

SB 315- ENTRY PERM T BUY- BACK PROGRAM

SFC- 03 (1) 03/ 09/ 04



The Commttee heard from the sponsor, the Departnent of Fish and
Gane, and took public testinony. The bill reported from Commttee.

SB 347- GULF OF ALASKA GROUNDFI SH MORATORI UM

The Committee heard from the sponsor, the Comrercial Fisheries
Entry Comm ssion, and the Alaska Board of Fisheries. The bill
reported from Committee.

HB 347- EXEMPT TAXI S FROM VEH CLE RENTAL TAX

The Commttee heard from the bill's sponsor and took public
testinony. One anendnent was adopted and the bill was held in
Committee.

SB 273- ASM BQOARD/ SEAFOOD TAXES & ASSESSMENTS
This bill was schedul ed but not heard.
#sb288
CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 288(JUD)
"An Act relating to tenporary custody hearings, and to certain

determ nati ons concerning placenment of a child in child-in-
need- of -ai d proceedi ngs; and providing for an effective date.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.
Co-Chair WIlken explained that this bill "clarifies the |anguage

regarding the findings the court is required to nmake when a child
is renoved from his or her honme by the Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services."

JACQUELI NE TUPQU, Staff to Senator Lyda Green, the bill's sponsor,
communi cated that current State |aw specifies that in order to
determ ne whether a child' s renoval fromtheir honme is "contrary to
the welfare of the child,” a hearing nust be conducted within 48
hours of the child' s renoval. She informed that while State
regulations do not require specific language in this regard,
federal requirenents nandate that the judge's ruling nust contain
the | anguage "contrary to the welfare of the child." Therefore, she
continued, the purpose of this legislationis to align the State's
| anguage with federal requirenents. As a result, she continued, the
State could receive approxi mately $500,000 in additional federal
funding in FY 05.

SFC- 03 (2) 03/ 09/ 04



Senat or Dyson asked whether the |egislation would provide any
benefit to the affected children, as he noted that the bill appears
to focus on increasing the State's ability to garner additiona
federal funding.

Ms. Tupou responded that the bill wuld not result in any
subst antive changes. She stressed that the tinmefrane requirenent in
whi ch the judge nust determ ne whether the child s renoval fromthe
honme is warranted woul d remai n unchanged, and she reiterated that
the bill would require the judge to specify, on the record, that
allowing the child to remain in their honme would be "contrary to
the welfare of the child."” Therefore, she sunmarized, this bil
woul d serve "to clarify a process that is already occurring."”

Senator Dyson asked the reason that this seemngly "straight
forward matter” has pronpted the devel opnment of nunerous conmttee
substitutes.

Ms. Tupou referred the Comnmttee to |anguage in Section 1, page
one, line 14 of the Judiciary comrittee substitute that reads as
fol | ows.

.During the continuance, the child remains in the tenporary
| egal { EMERGENCY} custody of the departnent, ..

New Text Underlined [ DELETED TEXT BRACKETED

Ms. Tupou stated that as a result of dialogue between the
Departnent of Law and the Legislative Legal division, this |anguage
has undergone three revisions ranging from "enmergency custody” to
"tenporary energency custody" to "tenporary |egal custody." She
stated that the language in the Judiciary commttee substitute is
acceptable to the aforenentioned entities.

Senat or Dyson understood, therefore, that this wording issue
requi red nunerous conmttee substitutes to be drafted.

Ms. Tupou confirmed that numerous drafts of the bill were required
in order to reach a consensus regarding this |anguage.

Co-Chair Wl ken stated that while not originally referred to the
Committee, the devel opment of the $500, 000 Departnent of Health and

Soci al Services fiscal note pronpted the bill's referral to the
Conmittee.
Co-Chair Geen noved to report the bill from Committee wth

i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

SFC- 03 (3) 03/ 09/ 04



There being no objection, CS SB 288(JUD) was REPORTED from
Conmttee with fiscal note #1, in the anmount of $500,000, fromthe
Departnent of Health and Social Services.

#sb315

SENATE BI LL NO. 315
"An Act relating to the adm nistration of commercial fishing
entry permt buy-back prograns.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Co-Chair WIken stated that this legislation "relates to the
limted entry fishing permt buy-back programi in that it would
allow the commercial Fisheries Entry Comm ssion "to front fund a
buy-back programif the noney is available."”

Senator B. Stevens, the bill's sponsor, reported that this bill "is
the product of the Joint Legislative Salnon Industry Task Force.™
He noted that the bill would alter statutes to all ow the Comerci al

Fi sheries Entry Comm ssion to inplenent "a | oaded buy-back permt"”
program were noney avail able. He shared that current statutes allow
for a fishery levy to be assessed, and, upon conpletion of an
opti mum nunber study for the permts in that fishery, a permt buy-
back could occur. Continuing, he explained that this |egislation
woul d provi de noney to accel erate the buy-back process. The funds
provided by this legislation, he noted, could be paid back via
mul ti ple options including an assessnent of the renmaining permt
hol ders. He stressed that while this | egislation would nmaintain the
requi renent that an optinmm nunber study be conducted, it would
provi de a fundi ng mechani smto qui cker inplenent a buy-back if one
were to occur. He pointed out that the |egislation has no fiscal
inpact as it is "just a managenent tool" to allow a quicker
process.

Senat or Hof f man asked the status of the optimum nunber of fisheries
permt studies.

FRANK HOMAN, Conm ssioner, Commercial Fisheries Entry Comm ssion

Department of Fish and Ganme, responded that two or three optinmm
nunber studies have been conpleted and one is currently being
conducted in the Bristol Bay region fishery. He declared that these
studies are very extensive, involve a lot of mnpower, and
therefore require a long tinme to conduct. He stated that due to the
difficulty in managi ng these studies, one study is conducted at a
time. He assured that a study would be required were a buy-back in

SFC- 03 (4) 03/ 09/ 04



a fishery desired.

Co-Chair WIlken asked whether the funds involved in this
| egi sl ati on woul d be general funds or federal funds.

Senator B. Stevens responded that nunerous funding options could be
avai l abl e, including federal funding. He noted that while it is not
the issue with this legislation, other federally funded buy-backs
that have occurred in the State primarily involved fisheries in
whi ch there were depl eted stock assessnments. O her funding options,
he continued, could be in the form of a federal |oan or grant;
however, he opined that a federal |oan would be the nore likely
because this legislation wuld address "an econom cally di stressed
region rather than a biologically distressed region.” He stated
that no funding source has been identified at this time as this
| egislation is just an option that the task force desired to have
in place where a buy-back situation to occur.

Co-Chair WIken asked for verification that this legislation is the
result of Sal non Task Force efforts.

Senator B. Stevens confirnmed. He stated that the Commerci al
Fi sheries Entry Conm ssion brought the concept to the Sal non Task
Force which then brought the idea forward.

Co-Chair Geen asked for further information regarding the current
buy- back program as she noted that the bill analysis indicates that
the current buy-back program structure woul d be maint ai ned.

Senat or B. Stevens explained that the current programrequires an
opti mum nunber study to be conducted before a buy-back programis
i npl enented. In addition, he noted that the Limted Fisheries Entry
Comm ssion has the authority to assess a seven percent "up-front"
assessnment on "the permt holder based on their value.” He stated
that the assessnent is coordinated with the permt hol ders annual
permt re-application. Continuing, he shared that the assunption is
that the assessed funds would accunul ate and allow for permts to
be purchased in order to reduce the nunber of permts in the
fishery. However, he stated, the issue is that to collect the
anount of funds required would take a long tinme. Therefore, he
stated that the purpose of this legislation is to provide upfront
funds, nmake the assessnents, and reinburse the fund |ater.

M. Homan concurred.
Senator B. Stevens stated that currently the program nust be

sufficiently funded, through the assessnent process, before the
buy- back program coul d occur.

SFC- 03 (5) 03/ 09/ 04



Co- Chair Green understood therefore that in a situation in which
there is the desire to buy-back permts in a fishery, the process
would be required to wait until sufficient funds accunulate to
support it.

Senator B. Stevens concurred.

Co-Chair Green concluded therefore, that the programis currently a
fishery self-assessnment programw th the Commercial Fisheries Entry
Comm ssi on managi ng the funds that are assessed and col |l ect ed.

Senator B. Stevens replied that the funds could result froma self-
assessnment, a grant, or a loan for instance from the Nationa
Marine Fisheries fishing vessel obligation guarantee.

Co-Chair Geen asked for confirmation that these options are
currently avail abl e.

Senator B. Stevens confirned that they are.

Senat or O son asked how the optinmm nunbers study "relates"” to
studi es conducted by the Board of Fish for the State's fishing
regions; specifically Area M

Senat or B. Stevens responded that he is unsure of how the optinum
nunmber study would relate to a situation wherein there is an
all ocation conflict between various regions. He stated that the
opti mum nunber study is unique to a fishery and is a gauge for
determ ning the econom c output, the nunber of participants, and
t he nunber of sustainable participants in the future.

M. Homan stated that while he is unsure how the optinmum nunbers
study would relate to regions such as Area M the Bristol Bay
optimum study survey, for instance, would review historical catch
records on the resources, as well as the econom c value of the
fisheries and the nunber of vessels required to catch that resource
overtime. Then, he continued, the information would be used to
project into the future to estimate the resource and econom c
return to the fisherman in that district. He stated that a
conplicated series of questions are used to cal cul ate such things
as the mniml nunber of vessels that would be required to catch
the resource over the next twenty years once the nunber of the
resource is determned, as well as how nmany permts would be
required to provide an economc return to the fishernen in that
district. He commented that the historical record of the area would
be affected by factors such as whether an area, |like Area M m ght
be open or closed to fishing.

SFC- 03 (6) 03/ 09/ 04



Senat or O son noted that decisions regarding areas such as Area M
are affected by Adm nistrative and Board of Fisheries changes.

M. Homan assured that the optimum nunbers survey is a |ong-range
study that could enconpass twenty or nore years. He voiced
uncertainty as to how a single event, like that occurring in Area
M woul d inpact the study overti ne.

Senator B. Stevens stressed that an opti num nunber study, which is
the process that determnes the economc capacity of a fishery in a
region, nust be conducted before a buy-back program could be
i npl enented. He clarified that a buy-back program woul d not apply
to the entire industry of a region, but wuld be limted to a
certain percentage of that fishery's participants in order to
reduce the nunber to economcally sustain and stabilize its
participants. He clarified that the purpose of the buy-back is not
to elimnate the fishery within the region, but is rather to ensure
that the participants desiring to remain in that fishery could be
nore economi cally sustained and "the capacity able to endure the
swings in the market volatility into the future.” He reiterated
that the sel f-assessnent programis sinply a neasure to allow those
who wish to remain in the industry nore stability in the future.

Senat or Hof f man, noting the "reasonable costs to be offset by the
Department” | anguage | ocated in Section 1, page one, |lines 13 and
14 that pertains to the expenses of managing the program asked
whether a definition or percentage estimation is provided to
clarify what the costs of managi ng the program m ght be.

M. Homan responded that the costs have not been established at
this time, as he stated, these expenses woul d be addressed during
the planning of the buy-back program Continuing, he noted that
this planning and the |l evel of the assessnent nust adhere to State
regul ati ons.

Senator Dyson stated, for the record, that he has divested hinself
of his investnents in this area, and therefore, he has no conflict
of i nt erest regarding this | egi sl ati on. Cont i nui ng, he
characterized governnment efforts to nanage the econom ¢ conponent
of fisheries as "well-intended and wide of the mark and quite
ineffective." He speculated that, in the long run, a review of
fishery resource nmanagenent practices would "indicate that the
limted entry program was a bad idea,"” and that the industry and
its participants have been "masked from the price signals" that
shoul d have been an indicator of the econom cs of the fisheries. He
stated that this legislation would "help extricate fishernmen from
bad or sub-optimal government interference.”" He stated that he

SFC- 03 (7) 03/ 09/ 04



woul d support this legislation, and that he "personally" feels that
government "does very badly in its efforts to nanage virtually
every enterprise." He voiced the hope that governnent would | earn
from this experience and refrain from getting involved in the
future.

Co-Chair WIken inquired regarding the authority through which the
Comm ssi on woul d be authorized "to incur debt" for the program as
specified in Section 1, page two, |ine one.

M. Homan clarified that the Comm ssion could not incur a debt and
that any appropriation to the Limted Fisheries Entry Comm ssion
must be advanced by the Legislature.

Co-Chair Green understood therefore that even were this |egislation
adopted, the Legislature would be involved in the process.

M. Homan affirned.

Senator B. Stevens noved to report the bill from Comrittee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

There being no objection, SB 315 was REPORTED from Conm ttee with
zero fiscal note #1 fromthe Departnent of Fish and Gane.

#sb347

CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 347(RES)

"An Act relating to noratoria on entry of new participants or
vessels into a commercial fishery; relating to vessel permts
for, and the establishnment of a noratorium on entry of new
vessels into, state Gulf of Al aska groundfish fisheries; and
providing for an effective date."”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Committee.

Co-Chair WI ken explained that this legislation "would establish a
noratorium in the @ilf of Alaska State waters groundfish
fisheries.”

Senator B. Stevens stated that he is sponsoring this bill at the
request of the North Pacific Fishery Managenent Council (NPFMC),
the Departnment of Fish and Gane, and the Al aska Board of Fi sheries.
He noted that conponents of Sections 2 through 8 would amend
"existing provisions in the Limted Entry Conm ssion to establish
tenporary noratoriuns on the entrance of new participants into a

SFC- 03 (8) 03/ 09/ 04



fishery." He characterized the change "as a technical correction
and nodification to those provisions" as the Board currently has
this authority. He rem nded the Commttee that while the Conm ssion
is allowed to consider the devel opment of a noratoriumto protect a
fishery, they are prohibited from inplenenting one wthout
Legi sl ative authorizati on.

Senator B. Stevens continued that the bill would also establish a
specific noratoriumon the Gulf of Al aska groundfish fisheries, as
suggested by the Board of Fisheries and as outlined in Sec. 9, page
seven of the bill. He also noted that the Departnment of Fish and
Game, the Board of Fisheries, and the Limted Fisheries Entry
Comm ssi on have been cooperatively involved in an extensive two-
year task force to align State prograns with prograns proposed by
the federal fisheries for the areas they manage. He rem nded the
Commttee that the State has the authority to manage fisheries up
to three mles from shoreline and that the federal governnent
manages the fisheries between three and 200 miles from shore. He
reiterated that this legislation is an effort to align Al aska's
sane stock species nmanagenent with the federal fisheries nmanagenent
pr oposal s.

Senator B. Stevens stressed that were the State's noratorium pl an
not established at the same tinme as the federal quota nanagenent
plan, there would be a mgration to the State's area as it would be
the "last open fishery." He clarified that were a quota plan
devel oped for the federal three to 200 mle area, and no plan
devel oped for the State's zero to three mle area, then there would
be "a massive influx into the zero/three fishery which would result
in increased pressure on the stock, increased pressure on the
managers,” and a decrease in the historical participants' catch

Therefore, he stated, this legislation wuld serve to provide a
check and bal ance between what is occurring in the nmanagenent t hat
is "changing for the positive in the long run" for the
sustainability for the participants, the communities that depend on
the industry, and the resources.

Co-Chair WIken asked whether a three to 200-nmle federal
noratoriumis currently in effect for the fisheries identified in
Sec. 9 of this bill.

Senator B. Stevens responded that a federal Licensed Limtation
Program (LLP) noratorium in which the nunbers of participants in
certain fisheries are fixed, has been in effect since 1991.

Co-Chair WI ken asked whether the twenty fisheries identified in
this legislation are included in the federal LLP.

SFC- 03 (9) 03/ 09/ 04



Senator B. Stevens responded that the federal LLP does not pertain
to the bill's fisheries. He stated that this legislation applies to
the groundfish fisheries that are nmanaged by the State, and which

he clarified, are currently open to new participants. He reiterated
that the purpose of this legislation is "to prevent an influx
during this period of developnent.” He exanpled that the
hal i but / sabl efi sh quot a nanagenent pl ans devel opnent process took
ten years, from 1985 through 1995, to finalize. He informed that in
1985 there were, on a statewde basis, 2,700 vessels fishing
hal i but and 370 vessels fishing the black cod/sabl efi sh market as
depi cted on the spreadsheet he distributed titled "Nunber of Unique
Vessels - Al Areas" (copy on file) that reflects the nunber of
vessels fishing halibut and sablefish in the State from 1980
t hrough 1999. Continuing, he shared that the nunber of halibut
vessels increased fromthe 1985 level to a high of 4,400 in 1991
and the nunber of sabl efish vessels increased to a high of 1,100 in
1994. He voiced that he "whol eheartedl y" endorses this |egislation
in order to prevent an influx of participants, which could create
"instability.”" He defined instability as a tinme when the catch
rates of historical participants declines, the comunities
dependent on the industry are negatively affected, and the third
and "nost inportant chall enge of adequately managi ng the bi onass,
is increased dramatically when there is an influx in the fishery."

Co-Chair WI ken asked how this |egislation would affect the Prince
Wl liam Sound longline fishery that is specified in the |ist.

Senator B. Stevens noted that the Prince WIIiam Sound |ongline
groundfish fishery would include such things as Pacific cod and
rockfish, but not halibut. He stressed that the vessels having a
permt for those fisheries would continue to be able to fish, but
that no new entrants would be allowed during the three-year
noratorium He stressed the fact that the noratoriuminpl enented by
this legislation would be limted to a three-year period, and were
a long-termor allocation plan developed, it nust be ratified by
the Legislature as specified in Sec. 9, subsection (k), page nine,
line 29 through page ten, line three that reads as foll ows.

(k) During the noratorium established under (d) of this
section, the conmssion shall, in cooperation wth the
Departnent of Fish and Gane and the Board of Fisheries,
conduct investigations to determ ne appropriate alternatives
for managenent of entry into @lf of Al aska groundfish
fisheries in the state. The conm ssion shall submt proposals
to the legislature for legislation or constitutiona
anendnent s necessary to i nplenent the recommendati ons of the
commi ssi on.

SFC- 03 (10) 03/ 09/ 04



Co-Chair WI ken understood therefore, that those who currently hold
permts in the twenty identified fisheries in the bill would be
able to continue to fish, and that no new entrants woul d be al | owed
for the next three years.

Co-Chair WIlken asked the definition of "non-pelagic" and
"pelagic,” which are terns used in the list of twenty fisheries.

SUE ASPELUND, Federal Managenent Research Coordinator, Ofice of
t he Conm ssioner, Departnment of Fish and Gane, explained that the
termpelagic refers to fish "that swmup in the water col um and
non-pel agic are those fish that live on the bottom"”

Senat or Hoffrman wunderstood that this legislation would allow
vessel s owners who have never fished to be granted fishing rights,
and he asked why this would be good policy.

Ms. Aspelund clarified this is a vessel-based noratorium rather
t han an i ndivi dual -based noratorium She explained that a vessel -
based noratorium was determned to be a nore effective avenue to
contain growh during the three-year noratorium period. She
stressed that this tenporary noratorium programwould "freeze" the
fisheries at this point intinme to allow for a rights-based system
to be devel oped by the Board of Fisheries, the Comm ssion, and the
Departnent of Fish and Gane.

Senat or Hof f man asked whether it is the intent of the Departnent in
the future to invest the fishing rights with the skipper and the
crew rather than with the vessel.

Ms. Aspelund replied that the rights of skippers and crew woul d be
part of the deliberations. However, she stressed that until further
anal ysis is conducted, it is uncertain as to whether that would be
the final determ nation

Senat or Hof fman asked the expected tinmeframe for this
determ nation

Ms. Aspelund anticipated that the earliest federal and State
determ nation date would be prior to the 2006 season; however, she
rem nded that the halibut/sablefish plan took ten years to devel op.

Senat or Hof f man opined that transitioning fishing rights fromthe
mul ti-vessel owners to the skippers "and potentially the crew
m ght be difficult. Therefore, he asked the Departnent’'s opinion on
the matter.

Ms. Aspel und responded that it is too early to nmake a determ nation

SFC- 03 (11) 03/ 09/ 04



as the processes are in the initial stages. She reiterated that
ski pper and crew rights are a conponent of the NPFMC anal ysis that
is currently being conducted. In addition, she noted that the Board
of Fisheries process in also in the early stages, and therefore,
she declared that it would be "premature"” to comment. She assured
the Commttee that a goal of this restructuring endeavor is to
provi de maxi mum benefits to the fisheries, to residents and | ocal
comunities, and to the State.

ED DERSHAM Chairman, Al aska Board of Fisheries, testified via
tel econference fromHoner and noted that while the final plan is as
of yet undeterm ned, the work group does support a vessel -based
noratorium at this tine in order to provide tine to address the
issues. He stated that without this noratorium the State's ability
to address the issue would be difficult, as the State's shoreline
to three-mle fishery would be overburdened as a result of the
federal "rationalization" plan. Overburdening, he attested would
result in serious econonm c issues and would require conservation
nmet hods to be applied to such fisheries as the Pacific cod.

Senator B. Stevens stressed that contrary to the argunent that is
being raised, this bill does "not allocate future rights.” He
declared that the Legislature has no desire to enter into the
di scussion of future rights allocations as that, he declared, is
the responsibility of the managers of the fisheries such as the
Board of Fisheries and the North Pacific Fishery Managenent

Council. Continuing, he stressed that there is a process in place
and when a plan is developed, it would be presented to the
Legislature for further action. He avowed that this bill would

provide fisheries nanagers with a three-year window in which to
address how to protect the resource from an onslaught of
participants into fisheries that are currently sustainable and to
protect the econom cs of the current participants.

Senat or Hoff man agreed that protection of the resource should be
"the driving concern;" however, he worried that utilizing vessel-
rights, as proposed, mght provide nulti-vessel owners with "the
upper hand," as they could argue that they have the rights. This,
he commented, is his primary concern because it is the crewren and
the skippers working in this dangerous industry who are risking
their lives rather than the nulti-vessel owners who potentially
m ght never be on any of the vessels. Therefore, he continued,
whil e vessel -rights m ght be the nechanismw th which to address
the issue initially, the multi-vessel owners should not be provided
an edge "in the hierarchy”" when the determination is being nade
regardi ng who should be granted the rights.™

M. Dershaminformed that specifying the vessel-rights approach for

SFC- 03 (12) 03/ 09/ 04



the three-year noratorium period was a decision of the work group
consisting of the DF&G the Board of Fisheries and the NPFMC. He
stated that this approach was determned to be "the fairest and
only effective way to get our arns around the participants;”
however, he assured that Senator Hoffman's concerns would be
addressed as the process devel ops.

Senat or Dyson, voicing appreciation for Senator Hoffman's concerns,
coormented that there is no intention to grandfather in any
conponent for the future. He comented that it is very difficult
for resource nanagers to nanage a resource if there are a huge
nunber of very efficient, large vessels harvesting the resource.
Therefore, he agreed that |imting that conponent would provide a
very effective job of nmanaging the resource. He attested to the
validity of the bill's goal to integrate the State's nmanagenent
practices of its shoreline to three-mle limt with those of the
federal governnent's managenent three to 200 m | e area practices.
Continuing, he reiterated that another valid concern is that the
State should maxi m ze the participation of A askan fishernen, as he
noted that a great nunber of the individuals in the fleets are from
outside of the State. However, he allowed that there are US
Constitutional constraints in this regard. Finally, he stated that
the financial interests of individual business people, is an area
t hat governnment does not handle very well. He voiced respect for
the NPFMC and that he would support this legislation as he
recogni zes three of the legislation's goals to be valid.

Senat or d son asked whet her the nunber of nulti-vessel owners is a
significant nunber to matter in the issue.

Ms. Aspelund replied that one of the real problens with furthering
the analyses is the difficulty in gathering and integrating federal
and State data. However, she noted that prelimnary nunbers
indicate that during the three-year noratorium period, the
participation calculations are that 1,475 vessels and 1, 655 persons
have participated. She estinmated that 80 percent of the
participants are State residents.

Senator O son asked regarding the owners of those vessels.

Ms. Aspelund responded that the Departnment does not know who the
owners of the vessels are.

Ms. Aspelund corrected, for the record, that as a result of a
technical anmendnent to align Sec. 9 wth other Legislative
noratoriuns and general sections of the bill, the comittee
substitute before the Commttee specifies there to be a four-year
noratorium Therefore, she clarified that the noratoriumwould be

SFC- 03 (13) 03/ 09/ 04



in effect fromJanuary 1, 2005 through Decenber 31, 2008.

Co-Chair W I ken asked regarding the duration of the federal
nor at ori um

Senator B. Stevens clarified that rather than establishing a
noratorium the federal managenent plan incorporates an LLP, which
specifies that no nore vessel |icenses would be issued. Thus, he
conti nued, the nunber of licenses is set and |licenses could only be
transferred where there is a disaster or a replacenent scenario.

SFC 04 # 34, Side B 09:51 AM

BRUCE SCHACTLER, testified via teleconference fromon offnet site,
and stated that this is "a convol uted" issue. He disclosed that he
has no involvenent in groundfish fisheries and is participating
sol el y because of personal interest in the matter. He declared that
the participants are "the guys running the boats and catching the
fishing." Historically, he attested, there has not been one
managenent regul atory reginme that has "actually given the crewren”
or the permt holder "any consideration" beyond "the lip service"
conducted in the analysis stage of the issue. He further opined
that while crewmen rights are discussed and researched; the
politics of the decision makers and the interests that those people
have "in the people who put themthere" override the fact that the
peopl e who actual |y produce the product are "cut out of the deal."
Wi | e under st andi ng t he reasoni ng behi nd establishing a noratorium
he stated that it would be a tenporary rather than permanent fix.
He asserted that the federal fisheries nmanagenent problem and
“"their inability tofix it,” is the driving force that has resulted
in the federal governnent asking the State to address the issue in
a simlar manner. He declared, "that people have bought off on
that" and are, therefore, noving this |egislation forward.

M. Schactl er suggested that the State disallow letting fishernen
with federal LLP licenses to fish in State waters. Wre this to
occur, he continued, Al askans who wish to fish in State waters
woul d be able to do so instead of being prevented from doing so for
four years as proposed in this legislation. He voiced that there
are other options available to protect the bionmass as opposed to
"shutting the fishery off" as this |egislation does.

M. Schactler declared that this bill would not fix the problem as
there are 2000 LLP license holders who could fish in the State's
waters. He stated that, were this legislation to nove forward, sone
system nmust be in place to ensure that State residents would be

SFC- 03 (14) 03/ 09/ 04



provided the ability to fish upon the conclusion of the noratorium
and "the fix" of the federal problem He stated that this
norat ori um does not need to becone a permanent thing, although he
declared that every noratorium previously entertained becane
permanent. He stressed that the State such not continue to let its
fisheries be run by the federal fisheries and their "failure to
deal with their problem™"™ He urged the Legislature to take care of
the State's fishernen and the State's fisheries, and he stressed
that other solutions to the issue are available. He stated this
rat her than correcting the issue, this course of action would not
fix the fishery or provide for State residents, but would instead
al | ow absentee owners to continue to be involved in it. He noted
that rather than allowing the Departnent and the Conm ssion to
effectively deal with the issue, this legislation wuuld allow the
Legislature to dictate action. In conclusion, he wurged the
Conmittee to support actions that benefit Al askan residents and to
not allow this tenporary noratoriumto becone permanent.

Senator B. Stevens pointed out that, rather than being federally
driven, this legislation was brought forward at the request of the
managers of the Departnent, the Comm ssion, and the NPFMC.

MARY MCDOWELL, Comm ssioner, Commercial Fisheries Entry Conmm ssion
Department of Fish and Ganme, stated that the Conm ssion does not
have the statutory authority to nandate a permanent limtation
program upon the term nation of the noratorium She disclosed that
the Legislature had previously authorized the Comm ssion to
i npl enent a vessel -based noratoriumin the scallop and herring crab
fisheries; however, she pointed out; however, that no statutory
authority exists for any other fishery. She stressed that it was
not the Commssion's decision to inplenment a vessel-based
noratorium as no analysis has been conducted in this regard;
however, she noted that the Comm ssion does have the authority to
i npl enent a person-based permt noratorium She communi cat ed that
t he Comm ssion would work with the Departnent to develop a plan for
future limtations, and she stated that were it determ ned that the
fisheries would be better served by a nethod other than the current
limted entry permt program that plan would be presented in the
formof legislation to the Legislature for consideration.

Ms. Aspelund clarified that jig fisheries are exenpt from this
noratorium in order to provide entry-level access to that Qulf
groundfish fishery.

M. Dershamstated, in response to M. Schactler's conmments, that
the Board is very mndful of the need to protect its authority over
State's waters and to determ ne the best solution for the State and
the economes of the region. He stated that the Commi ssion is

SFC- 03 (15) 03/ 09/ 04



cooperating with the other entities to the point at which its
authority continues to be maintained. He noted that the option of
denying LLP license holders the ability to fish in State waters
m ght not work as al nost every Al askan fisherman al so holds an LLP
|'i cense.

Senator B. Stevens noved to report the bill from Commttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons.

There being no objection, CS SB 347(RES) was REPORTED from
Committee with fiscal note #1 in the anmpunt of $40,800 from the
Departnent of Fish and Gane.

#hb347

HOUSE BI LL NO. 347
"An Act exenpting taxicabs fromthe passenger vehicle rental
tax; and providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Co-Chair WIlken stated that this |egislation would exenpt taxicabs
fromthe ten percent vehicle tax inposed on the | ease and rental of
passenger vehicles. The bill, he continued, would also exenpt
taxicabs from the definition of what constitutes a passenger
vehi cl e.

SUE STANCLIFF, Staff to Representative Pete Kott, the bill's
sponsor, concurred with Co-Chair WIlken's analysis of the bill

Amendnent #1: This anmendnent changes the bill's title to read as
fol | ows.

"An Act exenpting taxicabs and certain other notor vehicles
from the passenger vehicle rental tax; and providing for an
effective date.”

In addition, the anendnment deletes, in Section 1, subsection
(2)(E), the word "or" on page two, line two and inserts |anguage on
page two, line three follow ng the word "taxicab."” This |anguage
woul d read as foll ows.

(E) a taxicab, [or]
(f) a vehicle that is used exclusively for the hauling or
del i very of cargo;

SFC- 03 (16) 03/ 09/ 04



Furthernore, the anendnent inserts new |anguage in Sec. 2, page
two, line seven follow ng "taxicabs" as follows.

| MPLEMENTATI ON. The Departnent of Revenue shall refund any tax
collected and remtted to the departnent under AS 43.52.010 -
43.52.099 on the rental of taxicabs and other rentals that are
exenpt from the passenger vehicle rental tax because of the
anendnents to AS 43.52.099(2) made by sec.1l of this Act for
rental s made on or after January 1, 2004, ...

New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

Co-Chair Geen noved for the adoption of Amendnent #1.
Co-Chair W1 ken objected for purposes of an expl anati on.

Co-Chair Geen explained that this amendnent would expand the
bill's title to include "and certain other vehicles,” and woul d,
therefore serve to exclude certain vehicles used for the hauling
and delivery of cargo. She noted that vehicles exceeding 26,000
pounds are exenpt from the tax and this anmendnent, she stated,
woul d expand that exenption to include such vehicles as U Haul
noving vans that exceed 10,000 pounds. She noted that the
Muni ci pality of Anchorage already exenpts these vehicles fromthe
tax. She noted that this issue could either be addressed locally as
Anchorage has done or via this anendnent. She noted that there
woul d be m ninum fiscal inpact incurred by this exenption.

Ms. Stancliff stated that the bill's sponsor has no objection to
t he amendnent. Continuing, she agreed that while the issue could be
addressed | ocally, anending the |egislation would be "the sinplest
approach.” She stated that it was not the intent of the original
bill to negatively inpact small businesses.

LANDA BAILY, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Department of Revenue, stated that in addition to discussing the
anendnent with the both the bill and the anendnent's sponsors, she
had conferred wth Dan Dickinson, Drector, Tax Division,
Department of Revenue. M. D ckinson, she shared, stated that this
anendnent mrrors the Minicipality of Anchorage's exenption
| anguage, and woul d not present any adm nistrative issues to the
Tax Division.

Co-Chair WI ken renoved his objection.
Senat or Bunde objected, as he declared that taxes are inposed to

rai se noney. Therefore, he continued, exenpting anyone froma tax
is contrary to the desired affect, particularly in light of the

SFC- 03 (17) 03/ 09/ 04



State's current fiscal direction
Aroll call was taken on the notion.

IN FAVOR. Senator B. Stevens, Co-Chair Geen, Senator d son,
Senat or Hof f man, Senator Dyson, and Co-Chair W/ ken

OPPCSED: Senat or Bunde
The notion PASSED (6 - 1)
Anmendnent #1 was ADOPTED

JOHN NORRI'S, President, U Haul Conpany of Al aska, testified via
tel econference from an offnet site on behalf of the 54 U Haul
|l ocations in the State. He urged that the anendnent be approved as
he noted that the ten percent tax as originally presented was
intended to apply to out-of-state tourists for any passenger car
rental rather than to Al aska residents using such things as renta
trucks. However, he stated that the original bill only exenpted
vehicles in excess of 26,000 pounds. He stated that a ten percent
tax on truck rentals would present a hardship for citizens and
busi nesses.

Senat or Bunde poi nted out that the passenger car rental tax applies
to everyone renting a car, including Al askan residents.

M CHAEL BELL, Representative, Alaska Trucking Association,
testified via teleconference froman offnet site and voi ced support
for the anmendnent as he noted, "the vast nmgjority"” of trucks used
to transport and deliver goods in cities, such as grocery delivery
trucks, weight less than 26,000 pounds. He stated that were a
business's truck to breakdown, it would be required to rent a
repl acenent and be subject to the ten percent tax. He stated that
this tax would present a hardship to the conpany as in nost cases
it would be unable to pass the burden of the tax on to the end
user, as rental surcharges are not usually included in contracts.

Co-Chair Wl ken stated that this bill would be HELD in Conmttee.
#

ADJ CURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 10:14 AM

SFC- 03 (18) 03/ 09/ 04



